
Page 1 of 2 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

 REGULAR MEETING  

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6, 2019 AT 5:30 P.M. 

CITY OF BRAWLEY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

383 MAIN STREET 

BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL 

2. APPROVE AGENDA 

3. APPROVE MINUTES OF JANUARY 9 2019  

4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES 

 

The Planning Commission encourages citizen participation on all matters presented for their consideration.  

Members of the public who wish to speak on an issue that is not on the agenda may do so during the “Public 

Appearances” section at any meeting.  The Planning Commission does not take action on items presented under 

Public Appearances. 

 

     PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 

5. A Parcel Map (PM 19-01) to subdivide one parcel into four parcels to allow for the construction of three 

additional single family residential units. The property is currently zoned R-2 (Residential Low Density) 

and is 0.67 Acres in size. The site is currently contains one Single Family Dwelling.   

 

Property Owners:   Rene and Alicia Vega 

 

Representative:   J. Carlos Romero, Proterra 

 

Legal Description: East 146 Feet of South 200 Feet of Lot 7, Brawley 

Subdivision 1 OM 1 40, City of Brawley, County of 

Imperial, State of California APN 047-240-021. 

 

6. A modification of the Conditions of Approval to the Latigo Ranch (TM05-01) major subdivision. The 

proposed condition modification includes Best Canal remaining an open channel for an unspecified period 

of time, substitution of a property lien for bonds or a letter of credit and delayed timing of improvements. 

The property is currently zoned R-1 (Residential Single Family) and is 81.01 acres in size.  The site 

currently contains 18 single family units and vacant land.. 

 

  Property Owners:   Brawley Investment Ventures, LLC 

      c/o Mark D. McMillin  

 

  Applicant/Representative:   Martin D. Coyne 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Jay Goyal, Chairman 

Kevan Hutchinson, Vice-Chairman 

Eugene Bumbera       George A. Marquez       

  Darren Smith         Robert Palacio     Ramon Castro 

 



Page 2 of 2 

 

Legal Description:  All Lots of Latigo Ranch Unit #1 and the Remainder 

Parcel of Latigo Ranch Unit #1 (to become the future 

Unit #2), City of Brawley, County of Imperial, State 

of California.  

    

7. INFORMATIONAL REPORTS 

 *Annual Report Attached.  

 

8. NEXT MEETING DATE 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

Supporting documents are available for public review in the Community Development Services office, 205 

S. Imperial Avenue, Brawley, Monday through Friday, during regular posted business hours. Individuals 

who require special accommodations are requested to give 24-hour prior notice.  

Contact:  Alma Benavides, City Clerk, 760-351-3080 



CITY OF BRAWLEY 
January 7, 2019 

 

The Planning Commission of the City of Brawley, California, met in Regular Session at 5:30 p.m., City Council 
Chambers, 383 Main Street, Brawley, California, the date, time, and place duly established for the holding said 
meeting. The City Clerk attests to the posting of the agenda pursuant to the G.C.54954. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL  
 
The meeting was called to order by Chairman Goyal @ 5:34 pm 
 
 PRESENT: Palacio, Goyal, Marquez, Smith     
 ABSENT:      Bumbera, Castro, Hutchinson 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as submitted.  m/s/c Smith/ Palacio 4-0 
 
Commissioner Smith¸ added to the record that he was involved in the purchase of property for items 5 & 7 but has 
not received any compensation in the past 18 month nor will he receive any additional financial gain in the near 
future.  
 
AYES:       Palacio, Goyal, Marquez, Smith     
NAYES:     None   
ABSENT:   Bumbera, Castro, Hutchinson  
ABSTAIN:  None   
 
3.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
The minutes of December 9, 2018 were approved during the January 2019 Planning Commission meeting.   
m/s/c Palacio/Marquez 3-0-1 
 
AYES:       Palacio, Goyal, Marquez     
NAYES:     None   
ABSENT:   Bumbera, Castro, Hutchinson  
ABSTAIN:  Smith 
 
4. PUBLIC APPEARANCES  
 
5.  PUBLIC HEARING SP 18-03 & CUP 18-05 
 
A site plan (SP 18-03) and conditional use permit (CUP18-05) was requested by the Applicant to allow for a Density 
Bonus for a proposed apartment complex. The property is currently zoned R-3 (Medium Density Multiple-Family 
Residential).  The site is currently Vacant and 3.78 acres in size.  
  

Property Owners:   AMG & ASSOCIATES LLC 
  c/o Cameron Johnson  
 
Applicant/Representative:   Brawley Pacific Associates III. 
 
Legal Description:  REMAIN PAR OF FM26-83 ALSO BEING POR LOT 37 

BRAW SUB 1, CITY OF BRAWLEY, COUNTY OF 
IMPERIAL, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APN 047-320-103 
  

 



Planning Director Gaste gave an overview and background information of the project as presented in the staff 
report.  
 

Chairman Goyal, asked what the reasoning would be to allow a density bonus.  
 
Planning Director Gaste, explained that we are required by law to provide certain amount of affordable housing. It 
would be a benefit to the City to allow density bonuses as the City is deficient in affordable housing.  
 
Commissioner Smith, asked if the Density Bonus would require low income housing 
 
Planning Director Gaste, added that the incentive for a density bonus is to require low income housing. 
Additionally if it a density bonus is denied you have to prove that it would be detrimental to the community. The 
project would create additional housing and part of the project would include opening up I Street all the way to 
Main Street/ Highway 78.     
 
Commissioner Smith, asked if a Density Bonus Agreement is allowed by right.  
 
City Manager Bayon Moore, added that the item before the Commission is a discretionary item which the 
Planning Commission can decline. She added that the term allowed by right refers to something already define in 
the zoning ordinance as allowed. If a higher density project is being brought forth the allowed by right aspect 
refers to not being able to deny the project on the basis that it is for low income multifamily housing.  
 
OPEN PUBLIC HEARING @ 5:40PM 
 
Cameron Johnson, informed the Commission that this project would be a unique hybrid net zero project. The 
complex would run onsite renewable energy. An added part of the project would be reduction of greenhouse 
gases in the form of bus passes to residents, 30 van pool vehicles within the Imperial County via Cal Vans, and 
onsite secured bicycle storage. Additionally 2-3 million dollars of awarded funds would be used toward 
construction of bike lanes/ sidewalks.  
 
City Manager Bayon Moore, added that this is the second project application to apply for these funds. Chelsea 
Investments previously applied but was denied. If these funds are awarded it would allow the opportunity to fill 
gaps in infrastructure.  
 
Chairman Goyal, asked how long the Bus Passes would be given to residents, how many per household, and what 
the fee would be for using the vanpool services?  
 
Cameron Johnson, added that the design for administration of services is not complete. As for the van pool 
services, it would be free. While the limits to distance for the service is not set it will most likely be within the 
Imperial County  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED @ 5:51PM 
 
The Commission approved the conditional use permit as proposed. m/s/c  Palacio/Marquez 4-0 
 
AYES:       Palacio, Goyal, Marquez, Smith     
NAYES:     None   
ABSENT:   Bumbera, Castro, Hutchinson  
ABSTAIN:  None   
 
6.  PUBLIC HEARING CUP 18-04 
 
The Applicant requested a conditional use permit (CUP-04) to allow for a Density Bonus for apartments located in 
an existing downtown building.  The property is currently zoned Civic Center Main Street.  The site is currently a 
vacant building under construction and is 0.34 acres in size  
 



Property Owners:    Robert Obrien & Elizabeth Machado,  
  
Applicant/Representative:   Tony Machado 
 
Legal Description:  LOTS 20 TO 23 INCL BLK 78 EXC W 6 IN OF LOT 23 

TOWNSITE OF BRAWLEY, CITY OF BRAWLEY, COUNTY 
OF IMPERIAL, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APN 049-023-
002 

 
Planning Director Gaste gave an overview and background information of the project as presented in the staff 
report.  
 

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING @ 5:53PM 
 
Commissioner Palacio, asked if there was going to be a business on the bottom?  
 
Robert Obrien,  added that the Adult Care Facility, Day Out, would be on the bottom. Additionally there are three 
store fronts.  
 
Commissioner Smith,  asked if there would be access from the back, and if there would be security lighting for 
safety.  
 
Tony Machado, added that there would be security lighting for residents through the back. Access to the residence 
would be via fob access.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED @ 6:02 
 
The Commission approved the conditional use permit as proposed. m/s/c  Palacio/Marquez 4-0 
 
AYES:       Palacio, Goyal, Marquez, Smith     
NAYES:     None   
ABSENT:   Bumbera, Castro, Hutchinson  
ABSTAIN:  None   
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING VAR 18-02 & SP 18-02 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance (VAR 18-02) and site plan (SP 18-02) in order to permit a Church. A variance 
is required in order to allow for reduced onsite parking facilities. The property is currently zoned C-2 (Medium 
Commercial). 
 
   Property Owners:   Calvary Kaleo, Inc 
 
   Applicant/Representative:   GS Lyon Consultants 
 

Legal Description:  Lots 5 6 & 7 Block 81, Townsite of Brawley OM 1 15, 
City of Brawley, County of Imperial, State of 
California, APN 047-272-010  

 
Planning Director Gaste gave an overview and background information of the project as presented in the staff 
report.  
 

OPEN PUBLIC HEARING @ 6:08PM 
 
Jeff Lyon, GS Lyon Consultants, informed the Commissioners that the project as proposed would not be able to fit 
all the parking onsite. He also mentioned Pastor Shane Herman has been in contact with the majority of the 
surrounding business owners who did not express concerns for parking issues as they would functioned on off 



hours. Additionally Mr. Lyon measured available parking spaces in the surrounding area outside the residential 
areas and there was approximately 35 parking spaces.  
 
Commissioner Smith, asked Pastor Herman how large his congregation is, where they currently are located, and 
what their hours of operation.   
 
Pastor Shane Herman, Cavalry Kaleo, informed the Commission that they have a congregation of approximately 30 
adults and 15 children.  They have been worshiping out of the Teen Center for 9 years on Sundays at 9: A.M. and 
do not have a midweek service. They intend on having a midweek service after 6:30 PM and would only have 2-3 
cars throughout the week during business hours.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED @ 6:13PM 
 
The Commission approved the conditional use permit as proposed. m/s/c Palacio/Marquez 4-0 
 
AYES:       Palacio, Goyal, Marquez, Smith     
NAYES:     None   
ABSENT:   Bumbera, Castro, Hutchinson  
ABSTAIN:  None   
 
8.  ZONING AND CODE ENFORCEMENT 
 
9.  ADJOURNED TO February 20, 2019. 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT @ 6:21 pm 
 
 
Gordon R. Gaste AICP CEP, Development Services Director 



PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF REPORT 
 
Minor Subdivision: PM 19-01 Parcel Map 1549 C Street 
 
Property Owners/ 
Applicants:  Rene and Alicia Vega 
 
Representative: J. Carlos Romero, ProTerra 
 
Legal Description: East 146 Feet of South 200 FeeT of Lot 7, Brawley Subdivision 1 

OM 1 40, City of Brawley, County of Imperial, State of California 
APN 047-240-021 

 
Location: 1549 C Street 
 
Area: Total:  0.67 Acres (29200 Square Feet) 
 Parcel 1:  0.17 Acres (7,500 Square Feet) 
 Parcel 2:  0.17 Acres (7,500 Square Feet) 
 Parcel 3:  0.17 Acres (7,500 Square Feet) 
 Parcel 4:  0.17 Acres (7,500 Square Feet) 
 
Zoning: R-2 (Residential Low Density) 
  
Existing Use: Parcel 1: Vacant 
 Parcel 2: Single Family Dwelling 
 Parcel 3: Vacant 
 Parcel 4: Vacant 
  
Proposed Use: Parcel 1: Single Family Dwelling 
 Parcel 2: Single Family Dwelling  
 Parcel 3: Single Family Dwelling 
 Parcel 4: Single Family Dwelling 
 
Surrounding Land Uses: 
 North - R-2/ (Residential Low Density) / Single Family Dwellings  
 South -  R-3/ (Residential Medium Density) / Apartments  
 East - R-2/ (Residential Low Density) / Agricultural Equipment 
 West- R-2/ (Residential Low Density) / Single Family Dwellings 
 
General Plan Designation: Low Density Residential 
CEQA Status: Exempt 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING, ,  

5:30 P.M., CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 383 MAIN STREET, 
BRAWLEY, CALIFORNIA  



Minor Subdivision:  PM 19-01 

 

General Information: 

 

The Parcel Map was submitted in order to permit 3 additional single family dwellings. The property is 
currently zoned R-2 (Residential Low Density).  The site is currently one single family dwelling and vacant 
land and is 0.67 acres in size.  The proposed parcel map shows to subdivide one parcel into four  parcels 
to allow for the construction of three additional single family residential units..  Access is proposed via C 
Street. There are no zoning conditions currently imposed on this property.  
 
Staff Recommendation: 
 
If approved, the Planning Department recommends the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant shall obtain an encroachment permit from the Department of Public Works for 
any new, altered or unpermitted driveways necessary to access each of the parcels from a public 
street. 
 2. The applicant shall obtain a tax certificate from the County Tax Collector. 
3. The applicant shall pay all fees associated with review and approval of the site plan, parcel 
map, and variance. 
4. The applicant shall pay fees to record the final parcel map. 
5. The applicant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Brawley, or its agents, 
officers and employees from any claim, action or proceedings against the City or its agents, 
officers, or employees to attack, set aside, void or annul, an approval by the Planning Commission 
or City Council concerning the subdivision.  The City of Brawley shall promptly notify the applicant 
of any claim, action or proceedings and shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
6. Any person or party who succeeds to the interest of the present owner by sale, assignment, 
transfer, conveyance, exchange or other means shall be bound by the conditions of approval. 
7. Provide sewer and water, curb and gutter, sidewalks and other improvements to City standards 
before City issues certificate of occupancy for any structure for each parcel. 

 
The recommendation is based on the following findings: 
 

1. The proposal is exempt from CEQA pursuant to Sections 15303, 15315 and 15332. 
2. The location of the project and surrounding land uses make it unlikely the project will cause 

significant environmental impacts. 
3. Approval of the parcel map will not be detrimental to the public welfare or detrimental to the 

health and safety of the residents of the City of Brawley. 
4. The tentative map is consistent with the character of the area for that type of land use. 
5. The size of the new parcels is consistent with the Zoning ordinance. 
6. The size of the new parcels is consistent with the General Plan. 
7. The Parcel Map was performed in compliance with the Subdivision Map Act and Subdivision 

Ordinance requirements. 
 

The Brawley General Land Use Map designates this property for Low Density Residential land uses. 
 

R-2 (Residential Low Density) zoning permits Single Family Dwellings by Right. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Minor Subdivision:  PM 19-01 
 
The Commission must determine the following: 
 

A.  The proposed Parcel Map protects the best interest, health, safety and welfare of the public in 
general. 

B.  The proposed Parcel Map complies with all of the standards and conditions applicable in the 
zoning district in which it is proposed to be located; complies with any special standards 
applicable to the particular type of development being proposed, or to the particular area in 
which the development is proposed; complies with any special approvals required in 
connection with such development or area. 

C.  The proposed Parcel Map is in accordance with and in furtherance of the Brawley General 
Plan, any special neighborhood plans or policies adopted by the City regarding the 
development area, or any approved concept plan. 

D.  The proposed Parcel Map is adequately served by and will not impose an undue burden upon 
the public improvements and rights - of - way by which it will be served or benefited, or which 
exist or are planned for installation within its boundaries or their immediate vicinity. 

E.  Any impacts of the proposed Parcel Map on adjacent property are adequately mitigated with 
the design, proposed construction and phasing of the site development. 

F.  The design of the Parcel Map mitigates substantial environmental problems. 
G.  The proposed Parcel Map is compatible with adjacent structures and uses. 
H.  The Parcel Map is not materially detrimental to the enjoyment or valuation of the property 

adjacent to the site. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT:  Location Maps; Tentative Parcel Map. 
 
NOTE TO THE PROPERTY OWNER:  PLANNING COMMISSION POLICY REQUIRES THAT THE 
APPLICANT OR REPRESENTATIVE BE PRESENT AT THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR THIS ITEM.  
PLEASE DIRECT ANY QUESTIONS CONCERNING THIS REPORT TO THE PLANNING DEPARTMENT 
AT (760) 344-8822. 



PM 19-01 

AMontano
Rectangle





EA
S
TE

R
N
 A

V
E.

N
 B

ES
T 

A
V
E.

A STREET

C STREET

JA
C
A
R
A
N
D

A
 S

T.

D STREET

N
 1

4
TH

 S
T.

B STREET

MAGNOLIA ST.

C STREET
C STREET

PP#

3

WM

WM

WM

WM

WM

WM

2

"B
"  

  
  
S
TR

EE
T

"C
"  

  
  
S
TR

EE
T

1

(1
0
4
.7

2
 T

C
)

(1
0
4
.2

2
 F

L)
(1

0
4
.5

0
 T

C
)

(1
0
4
.0

0
 F

L)

(1
0
5
.2

2
 T

C
)

(1
0
4
.7

0
 F

L)
(1

0
4
.5

9
 T

C
)

(1
0
4
.0

9
 F

L)

EXISTING HOUSE
FF - 107.33

0
.1

0
 %

0
.1

0
 %

0
.3

0
 %

0
.3

0
 %

O
HE

OHE OHE

NEW PARCEL "1"
EMPTY LOT

AREA = ±0.17 AC
NEW PARCEL "3"

EMPTY LOT

AREA = ±0.17 AC

NEW PARCEL "4"
EMPTY LOT

AREA = ±0.17 AC
NEW PARCEL "2"
AREA = ±0.17 AC

LOT 42
APN 047-240-040
AREA = ±3.23 AC

LOT 22
APN 047-240-022
AREA = ±0.24 AC

EXISTING HOUSE

8
"S

8
"S

6
"W

6
"W

8
"W8
"S

8
"W8
"S

7
3

.0
0

'

7
3

.0
0

'

7
3

.0
0

'

7
3

.0
0

'

7
3

.0
0

'

7
3

.0
0

'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

100.00'

200.00'

200.00'

1
4

6
.0

0
'

1
4

6
.0

0
'

OHE

104.5
0

10
5.

00

1
0
4
.0

0

104.00

LOT 22
AREA = ±0.24 AC

LOT 40
AREA = ±3.23 AC

B
 S

TR
EE

T

C
 S

TR
EE

T

100.00'

7
3
.0

0
'

100.00'

NEW PARCEL "1"
AREA = ±0.17 AC

NEW PARCEL "2"
AREA = ±0.17 AC

NEW PARCEL "3"
AREA = ±0.17 AC

NEW PARCEL "4"
AREA = ±0.17 AC

100.00'

7
3
.0

0
'

100.00'

7
3
.0

0
'

100.00'

100.00'

7
3
.0

0
'

7
3
.0

0
'

7
3
.0

0
'

PARCEL A
AREA = ±0.67 AC

200.00'

1
4
6
.0

0
'

200.00'

1
4
6
.0

0
'

LOT 22
AREA = ±0.24 AC

LOT 40
AREA = ±3.23 AC

B
 S

TR
EE

T

C
 S

TR
EE

T

VICINITY LOCATION MAP

TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP
MINOR SUBDIVISION OF ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER

047-240-021 INTO FOUR NEW PARCELS

N

OVERHEAD ELECTRICAL POWER LINE

BLOCK WALL

POWER POLE (PP NUMBER)

LEGEND / EXISTING FEATURES

WOOD FENCE

WATER SERVICE METER BOX

SEWER MAIN LINES

SURFACE WATER FLOW DIRECTION

NATURAL SURFACE ELEVATIONS

FLOW LINE ELEVATIONS

PROJECT BOUNDARY
(APPROXIMATE LOCATION)

RIGHT OF WAY (APPROXIMATE
LOCATION)

WATER MAIN LINEW

3 PROJECT BENCHMARK1

OHE

(100.22 FL)

(100.22 NS)

TOP OF CURB ELEVATIONS(100.22 TC)

N

FIRE HYDRANT

20 0 10 20

SCALE 1"=20'

AC PAVEMENT

JCR 01 / 18 / 19

TE
N
TA

TI
V
E 

PA
R
C
EL

 M
A
P

1/1

TE
N
TA

TI
V
E 

PA
R
C

EL
 M

A
P

M
IN

O
R
 S

U
B
D

IV
IS

IO
N
 O

F 
A
PN

 0
4

7
-2

4
0

-0
2

1
 IN

TO
 F

O
U
R
 N

EW
 P

A
R
C

EL
S

NOT TO SCALEPROPOSED LOT LINES
SCALE 1"=40'

SITE PLAN
SCALE 1"=20'

EXISTING "PARCEL A" DIMENSIONS & AREAS

- PARCEL A =   29,200 S.F.  (0.67 AC) / 146 LF x 200 LF

PROPOSED DIMENSIONS & AREAS OF 4 NEW PARCELS

- PARCEL 1: 7,300 S.F.    (0.17 AC) / 73 LF x 100 LF
- PARCEL 2: 7,300 S.F.    (0.17 AC) / 73 LF x 100 LF
- PARCEL 3: 7,300 S.F.    (0.17 AC) / 73 LF x 100 LF
- PARCEL 4: 7,300 S.F.    (0.17 AC) / 73 LF x 100 LF

  TOTAL = 29,200 S.F.  (0.67 AC)

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

1) CONTINGENT UPON PARCEL MAP APPROVAL AND RECORDATION EACH OF THE NEW 4 PARCELS CREATED WILL REQUIRE A SEPARATE SITE
PLAN REVIEW PROCESS PRIOR TO THEIR DEVELOPMENT

2) EACH OF THE NEW 4 PARCELS WILL REQUIRE SEPARATE UTILITY SERVICES (WATER / SEWER / POWER / GAS / ETC.)

PRIVATE UTILITY EASEMENT

PROJECT
SITE

CHAIN LINK FENCE

EXISTING LOT LINES
SCALE 1"=40''

EASEMENT INFORMATION

1 THERE ARE NO EASEMENTS OF RECORD ALONG OR ACROSS THE EXISTING PARCEL A.

PROJECT INFORMATION

ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NUMBER (APN) :     047 - 240 - 021

PROJECT SITE ADDRESS & LOCATION:    1549 "C" STREET, BRAWLEY, CA 92227

PROPERTY OWNER (S):                          RENE VEGA AND ALICIA VEGA

EXISTING LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

THAT PORTION OF BLOCK 7, BRAWLEY SUBDIVISION NO.1, IN THE CITY OF OF BRAWLEY, COUNTY OF IMPERIAL, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,
ACCORDING TO MAP THEREOF No. 56 ON FILE IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF IMPERIAL COUNTY, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID BLOCK 7; THENCE NORTH, ALONG THE EAST LINE THEREOF 200 FEET; THENCE WEST PARALLEL
WITH THE SOUTH LINE THEREOF 146 FEET, THENCE SOUTH PARALLEL WITH THE EAST LINE THEREOF 200 FEET; THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH
LINE THEREOF 146 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

ACCORDING TO PRELIMINARY TITLE REPORT 11/28/18 PREPARED BY CHICAGO TITLE COMPANY (PTR 7101816704-SB)

EXISTING ZONING:                                R2 - RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY

PROPOSING ZONING:                           R2 - RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY

EXISTING HOUSE

WIRE FENCE

THERE ARE NO PROPOSED NEW EASEMENTS ALONG OR ACROSS THE NEW 4 PARCELS BEING CREATED.2

1
5
4
9
 "C

" S
TR

EE
T,

 B
R
A
W

LE
Y,

 C
A
 9

2
2
2
7

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
:

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
 
D

E
S

C
R

I
P

T
I
O

N
:

PROJECT NO. 18048

SHEET:

L
O

C
A

T
I
O

N
:

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D

 
B

Y
:

J
O

S
E

 
C

A
R

L
O

S
 
R

O
M

E
R

O
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
P

E
 
 
5
0
,
4
2
9
 
/
 
L
S

 
7
,
6
7
1

D
A

T
E

LAST REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DATE:

MD  01 / 04 / 19

D
ES

C
R
IP

TI
O

N
N
O

.
D

A
TE

B
Y

A
D

D
R

E
S

S
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5
6
 
W

E
S

T
 
C

O
R

R
A

L
 
R

O
A

D
 
H

E
B

E
R

,
 
C

A
 
9
2
2
4
4

T
E

L
E

P
H

O
N

E
:
 
 
 
 
7
6
0
-
1
9
6
0
-
6
1
0
5
 
 
/
 
 
R

E
N

E
 
V

E
G

A

O
W

N
E

R
:
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
R

E
N

E
 
V

E
G

A
 
&

 
A

L
I
C

I
A

 
V

E
G

A

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 
F

O
R

 
T

H
E

 
C

I
T

Y
 
O

F
 
B

R
A

W
L
E

Y
 
B

Y
:

D
A

T
E

44
4 

So
ut

h 
Ei

gh
t S

tr
ee

t, 
Su

ite
 D

, E
l C

en
tr

o 
CA

 9
22

43
(7

60
) 3

52
 6

96
8 

O
ff 

- 7
60

 3
52

 6
06

9 
Fa

x 
- 7

60
 2

35
 5

18
5 

Ce
ll

S
I
G

N
A

T
U

R
E

 
/
 
N

A
M

E

0
1

 
/
 
1

8
 
/
 
1

9

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL A

AutoCAD SHX Text
APN 047-240-021

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.67 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXP 12-31-19

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. L-7671

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L



1 

 PLANNING COMMISSION 
 STAFF REPORT 
 City of Brawley                   

PREPARED BY: Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager 
Gordon R. Gaste, AICP CEP, Development Services Director 
Guillermo Sillas, PE, Public Works Director 

PRESENTED BY:  Rosanna Bayon Moore, City Manager 
Gordon R. Gaste, AICP CEP, Development Services Director 
Guillermo Sillas, PE, Public Works Director 

SUBJECT: Latigo Ranch Conditions of Approval Modification 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Amend Conditions of Approval Nos. 17, 23, 24 and 25.  Approve relief of a 
total of $2,118,000 in developer expenses, provided that Wildcat Dr. is improved to City standards, 
including undergrounding of the Best Canal.    

DISCUSSION: The Latigo Ranch Tentative Tract Map was approved by the City on June 10, 2005.  The 
Tentative Tract consists of two units and a total of 268 single family residential (SFR) lots.   

The Final Map for Unit #1 was recorded on November 22, 2005 with the associated improvement plans 
and bonds in place.  Unit #1 contains a total of 113 SFR lots and is generally located in the northern half 
of the Latigo Ranch subdivision.  A total of 18 SFR units are already constructed and occupied; 95 SFR units 
are yet to be constructed.   

The previous developer, McMillin Homes, did not complete the required offsite improvements for Unit 
#1.  Offsite improvements for Unit #1 yet to be completed include:  

▪ A portion of Western Avenue
▪ A portion of South Imperial Avenue
▪ Landscaping of the retention basin
▪ Wildcat Drive from South Western Avenue to South Imperial Avenue

Per the Final Map, Wildcat Drive improvements include the undergrounding of the Best Canal and 
development of a greenbelt adjacent to Wildcat Drive.     

Unit #2 is currently entitled through November 30, 2019 and contains 155 units.  No final map or 
improvement plans have been submitted to date for Unit #2. 

Brawley Investment Ventures, LLC, is currently in escrow and proposing to resume development activities 
within the Latigo Ranch Subdivision, subject to relief from certain conditions.  As such, a public hearing to 
consider modifying the Conditions of Approval has been scheduled before the City of Brawley Planning 
Commission.  Once the Planning Commission holds the public hearing and takes action to recommend 
approval or denial of the developer’s requests, the Brawley City Council will also hold a public hearing and 
take final action to approve or deny changes to the Conditions of Approval.   

Meeting Date: March 6, 2019 

City Manager: ____________ 



2 

The City of Brawley Public Works Director/City Engineer, Development Services Director and City Manager 
have met extensively with the applicant to explore reasonable changes to the project approach over 
several months.  Staff have approached the topic with pragmatism and assembled a package, subject to 
City Council approval that offsets the developer’s financial responsibilities by more than $2M.  Revisit of 
the conditions will provide the applicant with the clarity needed to make a final decision regarding the 
purchase of the remaining lots in Units #1 and #2.   

The following Conditions of Approval are proposed for modification with staff’s concurrence: 

Condition 
No. 

Topic Request Staff Comments Staff 
Recommendation 

17 Quimby 
Fees 

Waive fees. At the time of 
entitlement, retention 
basin parks were accepted 
as dedicated land. 

Eliminate. 

23 BESD 
School Site 

Approve SFR 
development 
alternative in lieu of 
school site. 

BESD has proceeded with 
an alternative preferred 
site. 

Eliminate and 
proceed with SFR 
overlay alternative. 

24 Fire 
Station 

Approve SFR 
development 
alternative in lieu of 
fire station. 

City has proceeded with 
an alternative preferred 
site. 

Eliminate and 
proceed with SFR 
overlay alternative. 

25 S. Imperial 
Avenue 

Eliminate fair share 
contributions for 
railroad crossing, 

Project on the east side of 
South Imperial Avenue is 
no longer entitled. 

Eliminate. 

The developer is also requesting the following modifications to the Conditions of Approval with staff’s 
recommendation to deny: 

Topic Request Staff Comments Staff Recommendation 

Building 
Permits 

Immediately release 
building permits for 
next 95 lots in Unit 
#1 with no further 
offsite  
improvements. 

Once developer constructs nearly 
all of the lots in Unit #1, there is no 
incentive to install offsite 
improvements if the development 
is never completed.   

Deny. 

Security for 
Improvements 

Use Unit #2 as 
security for 
improvements 
associated with Unit 
#1 in lieu of bonds 
or a letter of credit.  

City is not in the real estate 
business.  Conventional security 
best enables the agency to 
complete improvements if 
necessary. 

Deny. 



3 

Topic Request Staff Comments Staff Recommendation 

Best Canal Relieve developer of 
responsibility to 
underground the 
Best Canal.   

Assume IID will 
program future 
funding.  

Move eastbound 
lanes south of the 
existing channel. 

Atypical of development pathway, 
sets precedent and incentivizes 
relief requests from other 
developers.   

Unreasonable timing delay is 
inconsistent with development 
abutting the property on the north 
side and full width improvements of 
Wildcat Drive.   

Conveys responsibility to a third 
party by diverting responsibility to 
IID / City which has yet to dedicate 
and program actual funding.  

Diminishes purpose of City initiated 
project on first segment of Wildcat 
Drive.   

Because IID requires access to own 
facilities for maintenance and 
repair, openings for access are a 
necessity.   

Existing channel poses a danger and 
risk to traffic, pedestrians, children, 
bicyclists and growing residential 
population.  

Deny. 

South 
Western 
Avenue 

Delay improvement 
until issuance of 
Certificates of 
Occupancy for lots 
260-272 of Unit #2.  

Once developer constructs nearly 
all of the lots in Unit #2, there is no 
incentive to install offsite 
improvements if this development 
is never completed.  

Deny. 



4 

Topic Request Staff Comments Staff Recommendation 

Legion Street Delay 
improvement 
from Branding 
Iron Drive to the 
western 
subdivision 
boundary until 
issuance of 
Certificates of 
Occupancy for lots 
252 to 259 of Unit 
#2. 

Once developer constructs nearly 
all of the lots in Unit #2, there is 
no incentive to install offsite 
improvements if this development 
is never completed.  

Deny. 

South Imperial 
Avenue 

Delay 
improvement 
adjacent to the 
subdivision to 
concurrent with 
Wildcat Drive but 
no later than the 
final 6 Certificates 
of Occupancy  for 
Unit #1. 

Once developer constructs nearly 
all of the lots in Unit #1, there is 
no incentive to install offsite 
improvements if this development 
is never completed.  

Deny. 

ADDITIONAL INCENTIVES OFFERED TO DEVELOPER 

Wildcat Drive 
The existing temporary access road to Latigo Ranch is inadequate in its current form and it only allows for 
travel one way into and out of the subdivision.  The City recognizes the importance of the east-west 
circulation that Wildcat Drive provides.  Latigo Ranch’s Conditions of Approval, as well as those of the 
abutting Victoria Ranch and Malan Park, are consistent with the City’s General Plan Circulation Element 
which defines complete improvement of Wildcat Drive as a minor arterial.   

With the goal of achieving greater connectivity, the City of Brawley has undertaken an effort to improve 
a portion of Wildcat Drive.  The City successfully competed for and was awarded a Congestion Mitigation 
& Air Quality (CMAQ) Program grant to construct a segment of Wildcat Drive.  The segment includes the 
southern half of Wildcat Drive from the existing barricades east of Walmart to South 1st Street. The 
segment will connect Latigo Ranch to the west of the subdivision.   

The City’s $1.7M design and construction project consists of an $892,000 CMAQ grant and a local match 
of $116,000.  Undergrounding of IID facilities is also involved at an estimated cost of $660,000 in local 
funds.  Completion of the referenced project is expected in 2020 at a total cost of $1,668,000.  The above 
referenced improvements comprise work that would otherwise be borne by the developer of the 
subdivision per the Conditions of Approval.     

City staff is proposing to relieve Brawley Investment Ventures, LLC of $1,668,000 in reimbursement 
obligation to the City to assist with accomplishing circulation improvements.  Furthermore, due to the 
regional significance of Wildcat Drive in its final improved configuration, City staff is also proposing to 
waive the streets portion of the City’s assessed development impact fee, a significant sum at $1,800 per 
residential unit for 250 units or a total of $450,000. 



5 

In total, City staff is proposing to offset a total of $2,118,000 in developer expenses, $1,226,000 of which 
represent scarce local funds.   

ATTACHMENTS: Latigo Ranch Conditions of Approval 2005, Latigo Ranch Tentative Tract Map, 
Latigo Ranch Unit #1 Final Map, Developer’s Request Package. 



Latigo Ranch Project Location Maps







Latigo Ranch Conditions of Approval 2005



Page 1 of 2 

Conditions of Approval 
Latigo Ranch Subdivision –  

TM05-01 (Tentative Tract Map) [Major Subdivision]/ZC05-01 
(Zone Change)/GPA05-01 (General Plan Amendment) 

 
Portion of Tract 114 and 115, Township 14 South, Range 14 East, City of Brawley, 

County of Imperial, State of California 
 

City Council approval of the Tentative Tract Map (Major Subdivision), Zone Change, and 
General Plan Amendment is subject to compliance with the following conditions: 
 
1. The Developer shall comply with all local, state & federal laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, 
resolutions and standards applicable to this Project, whether specified herein or not. Where conflicts 
occur, the most stringent requirements as interpreted by the City shall apply. 
2. Obtain City Engineer’s review and approval (stamp & signature) for all final maps, improvement plans, 
studies, soils reports, cost estimates, designs, calculations, Subdivision Agreement(s), related 
documents, and amounts of fees required for this Project. 
3. All improvements required for each final map and/or phase of development for this Project shall be 
constructed, or in lieu thereof, an improvements security be provided to insure their construction. The City 
Engineer and the City Attorney shall review the improvements security format, content and amounts. The 
type of improvement security shall be approved by City Council. 
4. Offer for dedication all rights of way, easements or parcels of land required for the improvements of 
streets, underground pipelines, and utilities. 
5. Approval or conditional approval of the tentative map shall not constitute the waiver of any requirement 
of the City’s ordinances or resolutions, regulations or standards; except, where a condition herein 
specifically provides a waiver. 
6. High Pressure Sodium street safety lighting shall be provided at 300 ft. maximum spacing and at all 
street intersections, according to the IID Standards. Streetlights shall be of 150 watts at street 
intersections and of 75 watts elsewhere. 
7. Stop signs, stop bars and legend, shall be provided at locations determined by the City Engineer. 
8. All private drainage and all private facilities, which are installed, operated, and maintained within 
Imperial Irrigation District right of way, require an IID encroachment permit. 
9. Developer shall provide the Project’s electrical load calculations to the Imperial Irrigation District Power 
Department in order to determine the electrical power facilities needed and their cost. 
10. Developer shall provide to the Project, underground utility services such as: natural gas, telephone 
and cable television in coordination with the corresponding utility company. 
11. The type, quantity and location of new fire hydrants shall be subject to the review and approval of the 
City Engineer and the Fire Chief. Fire hydrants shall be no farther apart than what is required by the 
Uniform Fire Code, table A-III-B-I.  Installation of fire hydrants shall be prior to construction of each 
respective phase of the development. 
12. Project must comply with local, state and federal storm drainage discharge permits regulations. 
13. Provide adequate drainage to prevent runoff into agricultural land and subsequent erosion of soils. 
14. Water shall be applied to active grading areas, unpaved surfaces used for vehicle access, and other 
areas of dust generation to prevent or suppress airborne particulates during site development to the 
satisfaction of the Brawley Department of Public Works. 
15. Implementation of Best Management Practices and a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan to 
prevent soil erosion and polluted runoff.  
 
 
 



Page 2 of 2 

Tentative Tract Map/Zone Change/General Plan Amendment:  TM05-01/ZC05-01/GPA05-01 
 
16. A qualified biologist shall conduct a survey of the property for the presence of burrowing owls, and a 
written report on the results of the survey shall be provided for review by the Brawley Planning 
Department before commencement of each phase of site grading.  The City shall require mitigation for 
potential impacts if burrowing owls or their burrows are present onsite and would be impacted by the 
grading. 
17. Quimby fees will be calculated using the appraised or purchase price to be provided by the 
Developer. 
18. The east half of Western Avenue shall be constructed to half-width (36 feet) from Panno Street to 
Legion Street. 
19. The north half to Legion Street shall be constructed to the standards of a Secondary Arterial from 
Western Avenue to the Park/Retention Basin. 
20. The south half of Panno Avenue shall be constructed to the standards of a Major Arterial (including 
medians) from Western Avenue to Dogwood Road (Imperial Avenue). 
21. The west half of Dogwood Road (Imperial Avenue) shall be constructed to the standards of a 
Secondary Arterial from Panno Street to the Union Pacific Railroad. 
22. A Community Facilities District (CFD) shall be formed to maintain the lighting and landscaping prior to 
recordation of the final map. 
23. An elementary school site may need to be provided per the Brawley Elementary School District.  An 
overlay has been provided for such a provision. 
24. A fire station site may need to be provided per the Fire Chief.  An overlay has been provided for such 
a provision. 
25.  The developer shall contribute a fair share to the Panno Street railroad crossing. 
26.  The developer shall contribute a fair share to the upgrade/rehabilitation of Lift Station #1. 
27.  Subdivider shall pay fees to record and process the tentative map and related environmental 
documents. 
28.  Subdivider shall adhere to all mitigation measures in the Mitigated Negative Declaration.  
29.  The applicant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Brawley, or its agents, officers 
and employees from any claim, action or proceedings against the City or its agents, officers, or 
employees to attack, set aside, void or annul, an approval by the Planning Commission or City Council 
concerning the subdivision.  The City of Brawley shall promptly notify the applicant of any claim, action or 
proceedings and shall cooperate fully in the defense. 
 



Latigo Ranch Tentative Tract Map





Latigo Ranch Unit #1 Final Map

















Developer’s Request Package









































































CITY OF BRAWLEY ANNUAL PLANNING REPORT AND 

STATUS OF THE GENERAL PLAN 2018 

 

 

Submitted To:  City of Brawley City Council 

   383 Main Street 

   Brawley, California 92227 

 

   City of Brawley Planning Commission 

   383 Main Street 

   Brawley, California 92227 

 

   Governor’s Office of Planning and Research 

   State Clearinghouse and Planning Unit 

   P.O. Box 3044 

   Sacramento, California 95812-3044 

 

   Department of Housing and Community Development 

   Housing Policy Division 

   1800 Third Street, Room 430 

   Sacramento, California 95814 

 

Prepared By:  City of Brawley Planning Department 

   205 South Imperial Avenue 

   Brawley, California 92227 

 

Date Submitted: March 22, 2019 

  



2018 Annual Planning Report and Status of the General Plan 

 

I. Executive Summary 

 

II. City of Brawley Overview 

 

III. City Council Role and Responsibility 

 

IV. Planning Commission Role and Responsibility 

 

V. Development Review Committee 

 

VI. Planning Division Role and Responsibility 

 

VII. Land Use Permits 

 

VIII. General Plan Update 

 

IX. Housing Element Progress 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 

The annual planning report and status of the General Plan for the calendar year 2018 is hereby 

submitted to the City of Brawley City Council, Planning Commission, and State Office of Planning 

and Research (OPR). 

During the 2018 Calendar Year, the staff, the Planning Commission, and the City Council 

addressed a variety of challenging and progressive land-use related projects and/or issues.  New 

applications are steady and consistent with last year’s levels.  Again, there was an increase in 

residential developments, some that were already entitled and require no further land use 

applications. 

As Director of the Development Services Department, I sincerely thank the City Council and the 

Planning Commission for their assistance and support in my sixteenth full year with the City of 

Brawley.  A sincere thank you is also given to the staff of the Planning Department, Community 

Development Services, and Public Works Department for their coordination and assistance in 

carrying out the year’s projects.  A particular thank you is also given to the members of the 

Development Review Committee (DRC) for working with the Planning Department on all the 

projects listed herein. 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Gordon R. Gaste, AICP CEP 

Development Services Director 



II. CITY OF BRAWLEY OVERVIEW 

 

The City of Brawley, incorporated April 6, 1908, is located in the southeast corner of the State of 

California, in the agriculturally rich Imperial Valley. 

Brawley is located 210 miles southeast of Los Angeles, 290 miles southwest of Las Vegas, 

Nevada, 120 miles east of San Diego, 60 miles west of Yuma, Arizona, and 23 miles north of 

Mexicali, Baja California, Mexico. 

Brawley’s climate is characterized as arid with hot summers and mild winters. The City lies 113 

feet below sea level and receives approximately 3 inches of rain per year.  The average annual 

temperature is 73.2 degrees.  Brawley also has more days of sunshine per year than San Diego 

making the area ideal for outdoor recreation. 

Brawley’s 2018 California Department of Finance population figures estimate 27,417 residents.  

The City encompasses 8.09 square miles giving the city a population density of 3,389 persons 

per square mile. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



III. CITY COUNCIL ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The City of Brawley is a General Law City operating under the laws of the State of California.  

There are five (5) Council members elected at large who serve four-year terms.  This Council is 

the community legislative body.  It sets policies, approves the budget, and determines tax rates. 

2018 Brawley City Council  

Donald L. Wharton (Mayor) 

Norma Kastner-Jauregui  (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 

Sam Couchman 

Luke Hamby 

George A. Nava 



IV. PLANNING COMMISSION ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY 

 

California Government Code, Section 65101, authorizes the creation of a Planning Commission 

by the City Council.  The Planning Commission consists of seven (7) members, appointed by City 

Council for a term of four years.   

One of the Planning Commission’s primary roles is to prepare and recommend to the City 

Council, a comprehensive, long-term general plan for the physical development of the City.  The 

Planning Commission also rules on matters from individual citizens pertaining to the 

enforcement of zoning. 

2018 Brawley Planning Commission 

Jay Goyal (Chairman) 

Kevan Hutchinson (Vice Chairman) 

Eugene Bumbera 

Ramon Castro 

George A. Marquez  

Robert Palacio  

Darren Smith 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



V. DEVELOPMENT REVIEW COMMITTEE ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The Development Review Committee (DRC) is an internal decision-making body that consists of 

six (6) voting members representing the following departments and divisions: 

- Development Services (2): 

-   Building Division 

-   Planning Division 

- Public Works 

- Police 

- Fire 

The Committee also consists of advisory members to include the following: 

- Administrative Services 

- Library 

- Parks and Recreation 

- Brawley Airport Advisory Commission 

- Utilities (Imperial Irrigation District, Southern California Gas Company, Time/Warner 

Communications, AT&T, Union Pacific Railroad, Imperial Valley Telecommunications 

Authority) 

- School Districts (Brawley Union High School District and Brawley Elementary School 

District) 

- California Department of Transportation (CALTRANS) District 11 

- California Fish & Game Region 6 

- County of Imperial (LAFCO/ALUC/Planning & Development Services, Air Pollution 

Control District) 

- Naval Air Facility – El Centro 

The Department Heads serve on the committee or may choose alternates to represent their 

departments.   

The role of the DRC is to make recommendations and decisions on projects subject to the 

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and projects requiring close coordination with 

other agencies.  It also approves site plans and adjustment plats not requiring a zone change, 

general plan amendment, conditional use permit, variance, or subdivision. 

 

 

 

 



VI. PLANNING DIVISION ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY 

 

Planning is an approach to problem solving, a process to formulate future plans and ordinances, 

ensuring full public participation, and providing all advisory bodies (e.g., Planning Commission) 

and the legislative body (City Council) with the necessary information to make intelligent and 

informed decisions. 

Through the California Constitution, the State has delegated the responsibility of implementing 

local policies and development to each City through the City General Plan. 

Some of the specific functions of the Planning Division are to revise the General Plan, made up 

of seven (7) mandatory elements and one (1) optional element, review of specific plans, 

amending the General Plan, keeping the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances current through 

amendments thereto, handling Conditional Use Permits, Specific Plans, Zone Changes, 

Variances, Major/Minor Subdivisions (Tract Maps/Parcel Maps), Site Plans, Adjustment Plats 

(Lot Line Adjustments, Lot Mergers) and Certificates of Compliance among others.  The Planning 

Division also works with other city departments, providing administrative and technical 

assistance to their projects. 

One of the necessary functions of the review for any project submitted to the Planning Division 

is the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) application.  Through the preparation of an 

“Initial Study”, the City determines whether or not a particular project may create a significant 

impact on the environment. 

Policies of the General Plan and city ordinances must be consistently applied across the board 

without regard as to who the applicant is and what the project may be. 

 

Planning Division Staff 

Gordon R. Gaste, AICP CEP, Development Services Director 

Andrea Montano, Planning Technician 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



VII. LAND USE PERMITS 

 

The City of Brawley processed a significant number of land use applications.  The applications 

have remained stable for the last four years. 

Below are brief definitions of the various permits, standard procedures, and the number of 

permits processed during the 2018 Calendar Year. The definitions are not comprehensive; 

therefore, they should only be used as a reference. 

Subdivision:  Generally, a subdivision is any division of land for the purpose of sale, lease, or 

financing and is governed by the State Subdivision Map Act (Government Code, Section 66410). 

Major Subdivision:  With a few exceptions, a major subdivision is the division of five or 

more lots.  During the 2018 Calendar Year, the Planning Department processed 0 Major 

Subdivision applications. 

Minor Subdivision:  A minor subdivision consisting of four or fewer parcels that requires 

a parcel map.  During the 2018 Calendar Year, the Planning Department processed 2 

Minor Subdivision applications. 

Zone Change:  Zoning is a state-mandated requirement and all properties within the City are 

classified into various zones or “zoning districts.”  Zoning regulations establish groups of 

permitted uses that vary from district to district.  If a property owner desires to conduct a land 

use upon his property that is not permitted in the existing zoning district, he or she may apply 

for a Zone Change.  During the 2018 Calendar Year, the Planning Department processed 1 Zone 

Change application. 

Conditional Use Permit:  A procedure established whereby an applicant can request a certain 

land use to be permitted in an area in which it is not usually permitted by the Zoning Ordinance, 

and where such uses are deemed essential or desirable to the public convenience and welfare, 

and are compatible with the various elements or objectives of the General Plan.  During the 

2018 Calendar Year, the Planning Department processed 5 Conditional Use Permit applications. 

Variance:  A procedure established by state law and the ordinances of the City of Brawley 

whereby an applicant can request a deviation from the provisions of the minimum property 

development standards established relating to building height, lot area, structural coverage, 

building setbacks, or accessory structures (e.g., carports, signs).  During the 2018 Calendar Year, 

the Planning Department processed 2 Variance applications. 

Adjustment Plat:  Lot Line Adjustment and Lot Merger.  These are required to adjust property 

lines between adjacent parcels when no new parcels are created.  During the 2018 Calendar 

Year, the Planning Department processed 1 Adjustment Plat application. 

General Plan Amendment:  During the 2018 Calendar Year, the Planning Department processed 

1 General Plan Amendment application. 

Site Plan Review:  A procedure for review of site-specific requirements for a project.  A site plan 

review may be an ordained requirement or mandated by a condition of approval. During the 

2018 Calendar Year, the Planning Department processed 3 Site Plan Review applications. 

 



Cumulatively, the Planning Department processed 16 land use permit applications for the 2018 

Calendar Year.  This is comparable to the last four year's numbers and the same as last year’s 

total.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



VIII. THE GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 

 

The City of Brawley, in 2008, prepared a revised General Plan that serves to guide future 

development.  The Housing Element was last updated in 2013 and is being implemented to 

achieve regional housing needs. 

The objective of the General Plan is to promote orderly growth and development and to 

maintain and improve the kind of environment that makes Brawley an excellent place to live, 

work, and enjoy leisure time.  The General Plan contains information on the physical, economic, 

and social environment of Brawley. 

The California Government Code requires that the plan be long-term, clearly written, 

comprehensive, and the policies of the plan must be internally consistent. 

The City of Brawley General Plan is an official statement by the City Council.  It can be viewed as 

the constitution for the City’s physical development, for the protection of the environment, and 

for the enhancement of the quality of life in Brawley.  It is used by the Planning Commission and 

City Council to support their decisions on major land use, zoning, and future public/private 

projects.  The General Plan policies and programs shall also provide information and guidance to 

the general public.  In context, the General Plan addresses the following mandatory plans and 

other optional elements: 

- Land Use Element 

- Infrastructure Element 

- Resource Management Element 

- Open Space/Recreation Element 

- Public Safety/Noise Element 

- Economic Development Element 

- Housing Element 

- Implementation Element 

The City adopted a Non-Motorized Transportation Plan in May 2013.   

The Water Master Plan was adopted in September 2012 

The Wastewater Master Plan was adopted in May 2013. 

A Climate Action Plan has been completed to the State's requirements and is ready for adoption 

by the City at any time the City Council deems appropriate. 

 

 

 

 

 



IX. HOUSING ELEMENT PROGRESS 

 

This report contains the data from the new 2013-2021 Housing Element. 

Tables A, A2, B, C, D E and F are available for viewing at the Planning Division located at 205 S. 

Imperial Avenue, Brawley, CA 92227 from 8 A.M. to 12 P.M. and 1 P.M. to 5 P.M.  

 

 

 


	March 6 2019  Agenda
	January 2019 Planning Commission Minutes
	PM 19-01 PC Staff Report Packet
	PM19-01 PC Staff Report
	PM 19-01 DRC Staff Report Packet
	PM19-01 Aerial
	PM 19-01 Parcel Map
	PM 19-01 Plan
	Sheets and Views
	18048 C2-Site Plan-011719




	TM05-01 PC Appeal 2019 SR Complete Packet
	Latigo Ranch Condition Modification Staff Report FINAL 2-15-2019
	TM05-01 PC Appeal 2019 Attachment Packet
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	TM05-01 Conditions of Approval.pdf
	Conditions of Approval
	Latigo Ranch Subdivision –
	TM05-01 (Tentative Tract Map) [Major Subdivision]/ZC05-01 (Zone Change)/GPA05-01 (General Plan Amendment)



	2018 GENERAL PLAN ANNUAL REPORT
	Copy of Housing-Element-Annual-Progress-Report-Form-2018



